
 
General Business                                           Lower Saucon Township                                         October 15, 2008 
& Developer                                                         Council Minutes                                                         7:00 P.M. 
 
 
I. OPENING 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 
was called to order on Wednesday, October 15, 2008 at 7:17 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, 
Bethlehem, PA, with Mr. Glenn Kern, Council President, presiding.    

   
 ROLL CALL:  Present – Glenn Kern, President; Tom Maxfield, Vice President; Ron Horiszny, Priscilla 

deLeon, Sandra Yerger, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant 
Township Manager; Brien Kocher, Township Engineer; David Shafkowitz, Township Solicitor, and Stacy 
Ogur, Township Planner. 

  
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
 

Mr. Kern said Council met in Executive Session prior to this evening’s meeting to  
discuss pending lit igation involving Heritage Builders and a personnel issue. 

 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Mr. Kern said for citizen agenda items – Council operates under Robert’s Rules.  What that means is during 

agenda items, Council will talk amongst themselves and amongst staff and the interested parties.  At the 
conclusion of that, we open it up to the public for public comment.  There is an opportunity for non-agenda 
items at the end of the meeting to discuss whatever your business might be.  We do have a microphone and 
there are microphones up at the table. There is a sign-in sheet in the back of the room.  Please print your 
name and address and email address.  It is very helpful in transcribing the minutes.  For those who want to 
receive emailed agendas, please give your email address to Leslie or Jack or call the Township office.  
Please state your name and address.  If you can’t hear, please let us know.  Mr. Kern asked if anything was 
taken off the agenda this evening?  Mr. Cahalan said under IV B, Scenic View Apartments has been asked 
to be removed from this agenda. 

   
III. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

  
A. LYNN KOEHLER – BETHLEHEM LIBRARY REPRESENTATIVE – 2009 BUDGET 
 

Mr. Kern said Lynn Koehler, our representative to the Bethlehem Area Public Library would like to 
update Council on the proposed cost for next year’s budget and request funding for the library. 
 
Lynn Koehler was present.  She said she comes every year to discuss the Bethlehem Public Area 
Library (BPAL) budget at this time since it is not aligned with Lower Saucon’s budget timeframe 
approval.  The BPAL’s budget is approved by the board and it’s going to the City of Bethlehem, 
then it becomes finalized.  The commitments by the Township need to be confirmed by November 
15 2008.  The budget has increased this year, and it’s one of the biggest increases.  It’s been a tight 
year and state library funding has been stagnant and it has dropped significantly.  A point of 
information is that the State of PA has the lowest per capita for libraries in the entire United States 
so our funding really isn’t out of line.  The BAPL does a really great job in trying to hold the line.  
For this year, the cost for health care has actually gone down significantly.  They do their best to 
not overspend.  Another major change is we have a new Director and she’s doing a good job with 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 2 of 19 

the budget.  There is a request for nearly a 5% increase.  They consider this a bargain.  The reason 
is because the Township’s population keeps increasing and the amount per capita is based on the 
2000 census figures.  Sometime around 2011, the new figures come in and Lower Saucon 
Township’s rate will go up based on the new numbers, except for Freemansburg.  Bethlehem’s 
kind of stagnant right now.  Three new bookmobile stops this year, one at Super Fresh, one at Viola 
Lane, and one that is not in Lower Saucon Township, it’s in Bethlehem, on Cherry Lane.  We are 
going to find a way to service the Eastern side of the township.  It’s not really the best stop, so with 
Jack’s guidance, we have actually restarted the Library Committee and have been working on ways 
to increase the service to the community.   
 
Mr. Cahalan said we did a library survey and sent out 1,000 surveys randomly to township 
residents.  We received 234 responses back as of yesterday.  One of the questions we wanted to 
find out for Council’s benefit was “do the residents continue support of the BAPL participation”.  
We were pleased to find out that of the 234 that responded, 67% said resoundingly yes, we do like 
BAPL and we want to continue participating in that.  That was one of the significant things we did 
learn.  We had another question about increasing funding, but he has to credit a lot of the residents 
that responded, as we didn’t put a figure in, asked well, how much?  That was not as clear as the 
group that said yes, we like the BAPL.  We’ll be putting those results in a format as we just have a 
raw number right now. There are a lot of great comments that we received.  It has things to do with 
the bookmobile and some things the Library Committee will be working with.  We’ll be sharing 
these with BAPL and the Hellertown Library.  There is room for improvements and one of the 
issues was the parking in Bethlehem, and people complained about that the most.   
 
Ms. Koehler said one of the things mentioned in the survey was increased services for teens.  The 
library opened up a new section for teens.  The library is a contained building, but there is some 
extra space there and they are going to turn the children’s room into a teen area.  They are going to 
move the children’s area upstairs into where the stacks are.  There is a fundraising campaign going 
on for that.  That will be a significant change.  There will be some increased staff, and you’ll 
probably see it in the budget in a few years.  She’s pretty excited about this.  The Committee is 
going to work to improve the services of the community.   
 
Mr. Cahalan said Ms. Koehler mentioned their health cost went down and the reason it went down 
is they changed their health insurance to a $1,000 deductible and they asked the employees to 
contribute 8% of the remaining cost.  That’s a significant move on their part to do that.  They take 
the increase and break it out into a per capita and then it’s multiplied by the census figure.  The 
figure this year is $17.05 per capita, and that comes up to a total of $168,522 for Lower Saucon 
Township for 2009.  In 2008, we contributed $160,714.  It’s a 4.9% increase they are asking for. 
 
Ms. Koehler said the recommendation she is making is that she is asking the Council to approve 
the library’s request for $168,522 for the budget of 2009.  Any changes need to be notified before 
November 15, 2008 because of the BAPL’s contract. 
 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions?  No one raised their hand.  Mr. Kern 
asked what is the desire of Council?  Mr. Maxfield said it’s a lot of money.  We have a budget 
meeting next week, October 22, 2008 and we can talk about it next week.  Mrs. deLeon said next 
week is when we go through all the line items.  Anytime we meet, we can take action, so a 
recommendation can be made.  She asked when is preliminary budget approval?  Mr. Cahalan said 
it is on December 19, 2008.  Mr. Kern said the library just needs our approval.  Mr. Maxfield said 
we can give that at our next meeting.  Mrs. deLeon said don’t we have the preliminary earlier in 
December?  Mr. Cahalan said it would be December 3, 2008.  Mrs. deLeon said doesn’t it have to 
be 20 days.  Mr. Maxfield said we’re only talking about a budget discussion.  Ms. Koehler said 
she’s here to answer any concerns.  Mr. Maxfield said he’d like to table this as he wants to see how 
it works into the discussion we have with the rest of the budget.  That doesn’t mean we can’t 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 3 of 19 

approve it at November 5.  We are coming into some tough times and an increase in tough times is 
always something to give us pause.  It’s a lot of public money.  Mrs. deLeon said she hasn’t read 
the contract in awhile, but we need a Plan B.  If we don’t approve this in the budget, then our 
residents will not have a library to go to January 1, 2009.  That would be unacceptable.   Ms. 
Koehler said it’s fine to discuss this, but you are cutting it awfully close.  Mr. Maxfield said we are 
okay with this.  Mr. Kern said we can vote on it on October 22, 2008.  Mr. Maxfield said if we 
want to vote on it on October 22, and we want to make any changes, we can have changes at our 
November 5 meeting.   Mr. Maxfield said every time we have a lean year here and we have 
services we have to provide, we’re cutting corners to provide for the increase in the library.  We 
were kind of shocked at the increase last year, and now it increased more and times are tougher and 
tougher.  What if we voted we only wanted to participate at a $150,000 level.  Would they kick us 
out on the street?  Ms. Koehler said maybe we would have service for $150,000 worth of time.  She 
could ask them that question.  It’s based on a per capita.  Mr. Kern said the costs have been going 
up and up and up.  Ms. Koehler said absolutely.  Mr. Kern said it’s reached a point now where it’s 
creating tension.  Ms. Koehler said she already warned you, it’s going to be worse.  Mr. Kern said 
maybe you could send that back to the board that there are other alternatives to look at.  Ms. 
Koehler said she did raise concerns that the cost was too much and too great a jump.  She knows 
how you feel.  Mr. Kern said we will discuss this next week where we will be going over our entire 
budget, line by line, and see what’s what.  We can talk about this further.  Ms. Koehler said she 
made a recommendation for 2009 that it be approved, but she’s making a recommendation for 
future years, and the concern is the cost, what are our other options.  If you decide not to do it, what 
are you going to do?   Mrs. deLeon said you need to come up with a Plan B for the year next year.  
It is a public meeting and the committee is welcome to come to that meeting.  Mr. Maxfield said 
again, it is October now and you’ve got to have this answer by November 15.  It doesn’t give us 
much of a warning either.  Ms. Koehler said it was sent to you by mail and email.  Mr. Maxfield 
said first time publicly the numbers were heard.  We need to think about this and figure out some 
options we might want to see.  Ms. Koehler said come 2011, it’s going to be a bigger shock.  Right 
now, it’s based on the 2000 census and cost per head have gone up.  Her suggestion is that you 
can’t change overnight, but looking ahead and planning that far ahead is a good idea.  Mrs. deLeon 
said we’ve had this contract for 18 years and if the Township and/or some other municipalities pull 
out before that certain date, then the other municipalities will get an increase and/or library services 
will be cut.  Ms. Koehler said as far as she knows, no one is cutting out.  Mr. Cahalan said the 
services that will be cut will be the bookmobile and the South Side branch since the main library is 
mandated by the State to be opened 65 hours per week.   
 
Gary Malone, resident, said out of the 1,000 people you sent a survey to, was there any cost 
mentioned in the survey what the township spends?  Mr. Cahalan said no.  Mr. Kern said that was 
discussed before the survey went out and he was kind of going along your line of thought that 
maybe it should be put in, but then the discussion was, and he agreed, that it would impede the 
responses of what we are trying to get at.   Ms. Koehler said some places have resolutions where 
they vote on it every year.  One township has a separate tax now for library services where the 
residents pay, and it did get approved.   
 
Nancy O’Keefe, resident, said she wonders if we should consider, with this huge increase, that there 
are five universities in this area that serve the public.  You don’t have to be an alumni.  They do offer 
library services for the general public.  They don’t have all the programs like the public libraries.  A lot 
of people like the libraries that universities offer. 
 
Ms. Koehler said the Access PA Program you have to be a member of a library to be able to use other 
public libraries and to take out books.  As for university, most of them do not have children’s service.  
There are some libraries that let individuals join at a fee. 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 4 of 19 

Mr. Allan Johnson, resident, said a couple of things may have changed since he spoke to Lehigh 
Library and it was over $100.  That means if we wouldn’t have our own library, and want to go there, 
each person would have to pay $100.   He believes if the Township does not participate in the BAPL, 
individual citizens couldn’t even join, so we wouldn’t have any access.  Ms. Koehler said you can 
walk into a public library, but to utilize books and use the services, you have to be a member and have 
a library card.  For people to use the Hellertown Library, they need to have a card from another library 
in PA.  Then they can become a member and take out books.  Mr. Kern said we’ll be talking about this 
next Wednesday, October 22, 2008. 

 
B. EPD – UPDATE ON DRAFT MULTI-MUNICIPAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
 Mr. Kern said Carolyn Yagle from Environmental Planning & Design (EPD), will provide Council 

with an update on the draft comprehensive plan. 
 
 Ms. Yagle said the discussion we are going to have tonight is going to be brief.  She wants to give 

you an update of the recent activities that have been going on as part of the multi-municipal 
comprehensive plan that the Saucon Valley Partnership (SVP) has been working on for many 
months.  We’re approaching the two year mark and what that represents is a series of excesses, 
especially throughout this summer that kicked off with a public meeting at the end of June.  
Following that public meeting, there were a series of Planning Commission (PC) meetings with 
Hellertown Borough Planning Commission (HBPC) and Lower Saucon Planning Commission 
(LSPC).  A couple of weeks ago we met with a Joint Planning Commission effort in this room 
between HBPC and LSTPC joining together for the first time to talk about how the processes come 
about and where the project currently stands.  Last evening she met with the HBPC and tomorrow 
night she is going to meet with the LSTPC.  The purpose of the meeting last night was to approach 
them in regard to their willingness and recommendations for the plan to be forwarded to Council so 
it could enter into the coming months into its last public review or its major official public review 
period as the document has been evolving throughout this year.  Lots of changes have been 
incorporated based on the feedback received at the June public meeting and the series of PC 
meetings.  We have met with the SVP throughout this phase as well, as all of the other activities 
that have happened at the partnership level, have been evolving around the recommendations for 
future land use, cultural and historical resources, the natural resources component of the plan, 
looking at transportation and other infrastructure improvements and other facets of the plan that are 
required by the MPC.  We have, with great excitement, the opportunity to talk with LSTPC 
tomorrow evening and identify if they are ready for a document to be coming forth to you, as a 
Council body, in the coming weeks or months.  Tonight, she handed out one of the Executive 
Summaries that has been prepared and it has been presented to the SVP and to the HBPC.  This 
facet of the project is one that has emerged from several of HBPC members request about getting a 
brief document that summarizes the major components of the plan and can be handed out on a 
resident wide basis, and whether it’s something that is housed here at the Township building as 
well as at the Borough Hall, people come in and want to learn about the general overview of the 
plan, they can do that as well be handed out in a new resident packet.  There is one item that has 
emerged in recent weeks, as a recommendation to this glossy Executive Summary, and that is to 
put some contact information down at the bottom of the page in terms if people have other 
questions with the comprehensive plans or ways they might want to get involved in its 
implementation, we would include the phone numbers or websites so they can identify where they 
can go next.  The graphic that is shown on the screen, as well as in the handout, is one that 
represents the cumulation of all of the different recommendations that would be associated with the 
plan, and recognizably, this planning effort has identified some great strides and desires that both 
residents of the Township and the Borough have in regards to balancing.  That’s they key word 
“balancing” the management and growth of conservation, and what that means in terms of the 
quality of life and conserving the natural resources.  As you clearly identify in the maps the back of 
the room, the natural resources are of prime importance, and in regard to the Action Plan that has 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 5 of 19 

been developed as part of this effort, it also seeks to balance out some of the activities that are 
going to be critical to your growth as it relates to infrastructure services and other types of services. 
Equally important to conserving resources in the appropriative places and making planning and 
policy decisions based on those premises.  That is a general overview and she is recognizing there 
are many more things they will be talking to you, as a Council body, and also recognizing that 
members of you, as Partnership participants, and even members here in the audience have been 
participating in the public process are aware of  a lot of what is going on.  She’s going to open it up 
to any questions you may have or specifically what has happened in the last couple of weeks.  The 
Joint Planning Commission meeting was the highlight.   

 
 Mrs. deLeon said she could not make that meeting as she had a conflicting meeting that night.  She 

asked to refresh her memory, we are looking at the draft plan, what is the next step?  Ms. Yagle 
said she’ll take Hellertown’s meeting last evening and that will be equivalent to tomorrow nights 
meeting in terms of layout.  At Hellertown, we presented the most recent draft of the overall 
document and gave them a run down of what the SVP discussion entailed the previous weeks as 
there were some questions that were considered of the plan and we gave them a run down of that.  
Ultimately, they requested two things from the HBPC and they will be doing the same thing with 
LSTPC and that is to give a formal recommendation for incorporating, there could be joint 
meetings of the two PC’s on a regular basis, and that meaning, a couple of times a year or as they 
see fit.  That was a major milestone identified at the Joint Planning Commission meeting.  The 
second one is requesting if they would recommend that the Planning Commission would enable 
this document to be put forth to Hellertown Council, and that in parallel, we would be asking 
LSTPC to recommend that it is an appropriate time to move on to Council.  The purpose of it going 
to Council is we’re not at the approval stage.  We are looking at getting it in front of the Council’s 
to identify if it is appropriate for it to go out for the public official review period.  As part of that 
step, and if after it goes to PC and once it gets approval, it would come to you, as a Council, and 
you would have an opportunity to identify if it were appropriate, then it goes in front of the public, 
which would be 45 days, and it would go in front of the School District and to the surrounding 
municipalities.  Looking at late 2008 or early 2009, it would come back to you as a body and you 
would have the opportunity to either recognize it for approval that you would be looking to sign a 
resolution to approve it.  The comprehensive plan is not a legally binding document in terms of 
law, like a zoning ordinance, but it is one that is adopted by resolution where it’s giving you the 
guidelines and would address things like in your comprehensive plan, or if you thought, with the 
comments received, that there were some things that should be further enhanced, they would go 
back and do those items and then present them back to both PC’s, and then come back in front of 
you again.   Last week at the SVP meeting, they identified it was something they were ready to get 
in front of PC’s for their consideration, and also given the momentum of that Joint PC meeting in 
September.  The meeting of the two had identified things in the Action Plan that were important 
issues to address in their upcoming year and ready to build on this.  Mrs. deLeon said the one 
change she finds, that is very dear to her heart, is that we don’t lose our identifies from the old 
comprehensive plan.  She wanted to identify in there, the old regions, like Seidersville, Wassergass, 
etc. in the document.  Ms. Yagle said there are the development districts and Leithsville, 
Wassergass and Seidersville.  In terms of how we named all of the historical districts, we did not 
name all of them. Mrs. deLeon said this annoys her as she didn’t want to lose our historic 
perspective.  We’ve always been known for the different areas in the Township from the old 
names.  Now we’re losing that.  That was one thing she really wanted to see in this plan and she’s 
very disappointed. She expressed this at three meetings at the SVP.  Ms. Yagle said she thinks 
Shimersville is the only one that is not called out and that’s because of the nature of the broad areas 
that we have identified.  The other ones have been addressed.  Mrs. deLeon said is there a chance to 
get more language in here?  Ms. Yagle said they can sure do that. Mrs. deLeon said she’d like 
someone to look into our current comprehensive plan, and when she supported doing this, she did 
not want to lose our identities from where we came from.  Ms. Yagle said we can focus and 
identify if Shimersville is in a certain area that we haven’t already incorporated, and we can 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 6 of 19 

definitely present that to the LSTPC tomorrow night.  Mrs. deLeon said before she leaves tonight 
she’d like a copy of our current comprehensive plan and go through it and make sure we are not 
losing more than that.  Mr. Cahalan said it’s on the Township website.  We had that loaded on the 
website.  Mr. Maxfield said Shimersville might be kind of a weird one to site.  Shimersville really 
doesn’t exist anymore except as a road and the sewage disposal plant is Shimersville.  He does 
agree with Priscilla and we really should keep those names in.  Mr. Cahalan said those are 
identified and the only one missing is Shimersville.  Mrs. deLeon said she wasn’t looking to see it 
on a map.  She wanted it in the text.  It’s the villages of this township.  People need to know.  Mr. 
Kern said it’s a good point and we’ll include it in the plan and get the drawing of the natural 
resources update in the plan.  We’ll go from there.  On a broader view, what this represents, the 
SVP came together three or four years ago and it was an effort to get Hellertown, Lower Saucon 
Township and the School District to meet on a regular basis and open up communication which is 
really something that may not have happened in the past.  It has been extremely successful.   This is 
something really special and talking and planning.  How can we work together to make it 
something better, and that’s where we’re headed with this.  It’s a communication tool that is going 
to serve all of us.  Mrs. deLeon said for those who aren’t familiar with our COG, we’re very unique 
in the state of PA as most of the COG’s don’t include school districts, so that’s pretty special. 

 
Mr. Horiszny said is the HBPC going to the Council?  Ms. Yagle said yes, they approved it to go to 
Council for their consideration and what they would like to do with the next steps? Mrs. deLeon 
said what if they already approved something and something like the villages aren’t in?  Ms. Yagle 
said it’s just a minor change.   Mrs. deLeon said she’s glancing at the wording to the resolution and 
it doesn’t even say anything about the Council of Government’s, it just talks about the three 
entities.  It doesn’t say we are a COG.  The COG is doing this.  We are the sponsor organization.  
Ms. Yagle said in regard to who signs the resolution, it’s addressed to the three entities.  If you are 
asking for information to be put in the beginning of the resolution that identifies that is has been a 
project of the COG, then we can certainly add that.  Mrs. deLeon said she would like that.  In the 
first paragraph, the Steering Committee was really the COG.   

 
IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS 
 

A. REPYNECK – 1615 ROSALIE DRIVE – PRELIMINARY/FINAL CONDITIONAL 
APPROVAL OF MINOR SUBDIVISION 

  
The applicant is proposing a minor subdivision to create a building lot for a new single family 
structure. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION FOR REPYNECK MINOR SUBDIVISION 
1615 ROSALIE DRIVE AND 2093 LEITHSVILLE ROAD TAX MAP PARCELS R7-17-26 

AND R7-17-26C PRELIMINARY/FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAN APPROVAL  
FOR OCTOBER 15, 2008 LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The Lower Saucon Township Staff recommends that the Township Council approve the “Lot Line 
Adjustment Plan for Lands Owned by Louis J. & Catherine Repyneck, H&W,” as prepared by 
Lehigh Engineering Associates, Inc., dated October 9, 2007, last revised September 10, 2008, 
consisting of Sheet 1 of 2 and Sheet 2 of 2. 
 

Subject, however, to the following conditions: 
 
1. The Applicant shall address the review comments contained in the letter dated October 8, 
2008, from Hanover Engineering Associates, Inc., to the satisfaction of the Township Council.  
 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 7 of 19 

2. The Applicant shall address the review comments contained in the letter dated October 7, 
2008, from Boucher and James, Inc., to the satisfaction of the Township Council.  

 
3. In the event the lot pins, survey monuments, and inlet have not been set nor is the required 
Financial Security Agreement executed within 90 days of this approval, this approval shall expire and 
be deemed revoked unless a written extension is granted by the Governing Body. 

 
4. The Applicant shall provide two (2) Mylars and seven (7) prints of the Plans with original 
signatures, notarizations and seals.  Four (4) complete sets of Plans shall also be provided with 
original signatures, notarizations and seals. The Applicant shall also provide two (2) CDs of all Plans 
in an AutoCAD format (jpeg-ROM).   

 
5. The Applicant shall pay any outstanding escrow balance due to the Township in the review 
of the Plans and the preparation of legal documents.  

 
6. The Applicant shall satisfy all these conditions within one (1) year of the date of the 
conditional approval unless an extension is granted by the Township Council. 

 
7. All waivers granted shall be noted on the Plans with the applicable section, requirements, 
date of approval, and any conditions of approval.   

 
It is also recommended that Township Council approve waivers from the following requirements of the 
following Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (SALDO) Sections: 
 
1. Sections 145-33.C(1) and (2) and 145-34.B so as to not require, per these sections, any further 

existing feature information, either on site or surrounding the site.   
2. Section 145-43.B(2), deeming the existing vegetation as adequate for the required arterial road 

buffer, so as to not require an elevated berm nor tree plantings within the buffer easement.  
3. Sections 145-36, 145-41.B(4), and 145-45.B(9) so as to not require further improvements to 

Leithsville Road and Rosalie Drive than is shown on the Plans.   
 
It is also recommended that Township Council approve a waiver from the following requirement of the 
following Sewers Ordinance (Chapter 130) Section: 
 
4. Section 130-14.K so as to allow a sand mound sewage absorption area on a 2-acre lot, to be 

consistent with the Zoning Ordinance requirements.   
 

Mr. Alan Ringer, from Lehigh Engineering; Lou Repyneck, and Nicole Malone were present.  Mr. 
Ringer said after several negotiations between HEA and Boucher and James, they’ve come up with 
finally concluding.  What they are basically doing is just transferring a little over 800ths of an acre 
from one lot to another lot, both are owned by Mr. & Mrs. Repyneck.  We are doing this so we can 
meet zoning, especially, so the Repyneck’s daughter, Mrs. Malone and her husband can build.   
 
Mr. Kern asked if there were any outstanding issues?  Mr. Kocher said in their letter, they are down 
to two small drafting items and the rest are just a legal checklist for Linc.  Ms. Ogur said no 
outstanding issues that are major, just a discrepancy that she explained to Alan that is fixable.   
 
Mr. Kern asked if there were any waivers required?  Mr. Kocher said the first is not to acquire any 
more additional existing features information shown, the second is to deem the existing vegetation 
as adequate for the required arterial road buffer so that they don’t have to do elevated berms or tree 
plantings in the buffer easement.  The third is not require further improvements to Leithsville Road 
and Rosalie Drive other than what’s shown on the plan, and then to allow a sand mound on a two 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 8 of 19 

acre lot rather than a three acre lot to be consistent with zoning and the Planning Commission is 
recommending favorable action on all of those.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the staff recommendation on Repyneck, preliminary final 

approval. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 

 
IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

 
A. RESOLUTION #54-2008 – COMMENDING M. J. ROCHE FOR TOWN HALL PARK 

TRAIL SIGNAGE  
 
Mr. Kern said Resolution #54-2008 has been prepared to recognize the work done by M. J. Roche 
to create signage at Town Hall Park in association with a Boy Scout project. 
 

RESOLUTION #54-2008 
A RESOLUTION COMMENDING MICHAEL J. ROCHE FOR HIS EAGLE SCOUT 

PROJECT AT THE TOWN HALL PARK 
 

WHEREAS, Michael J. (MJ) Roche has been a member of Troop #319 of the Boy Scouts for 
many years; and 
 
WHEREAS, MJ earned over 21 merit badges for proficiency in areas such as citizenship, 
lifesaving, environmental science, first aid and personal fitness during his advancement through 
the scout ranks; and  
 
WHEREAS, MJ set his sights on achieving the Eagle Scout badge, which is Boy Scouting’s 
highest award, and chose to make improvements and create interpretative signs for the Township’s 
Town Hall Park Nature Trail for his Eagle Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, during the past year, MJ worked with Bill Sweeney from the Pennsylvania 
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR) to identify non-native invasive plants 
for removal and selected native plantings for replacements along the trail;  
 
WHEREAS, MJ also researched and created four (4) interpretative signs that visitors will find 
mounted at various locations along the trail that will assist them in identifying and providing 
information about the trees and plants that can be found along the Nature Trail; and 
 
WHEREAS, during this past summer, MJ and his helpers dug out numerous non-native plants, 
replaced them with twenty-five (25) spice bushes, winterberry and witch hazel plants; upgraded 
and enhanced the Nature Trail entrance sign, and fixed the bridge railing at the entrance to the trail; 
and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of Lower Saucon Township, Glenn 
Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Council Member; Sandra 
Yerger, Council Member; and Ronald Horiszny, Council Member; wishes to commend Michael J. 
Roche for the completion of his Eagle Scout project and its dedication to the Township which will 
be used to enlighten visitors to the natural beauty and diversity of the Town Hall Nature Trail for 
many years to come.   
 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 9 of 19 

 Mr. Cahalan said we are going to have a short dedication ceremony out at the trail on Saturday, 
October 25, 2008 at 9:00 AM.   

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for approve of Resolution 54-2008. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  Mrs. Yerger said she walked it the other day and 
it really is nice and she actually had another resident comment on the great job he did and they 
liked the plant selection.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

B. RESOLUTION #55-2008 – COMMEMORATING FIRST SAUCON VALLEY HISTORY 
DAY 
 
Mr. Kern said Resolution #55-2008 has been prepared to recognize the 1st annual History Day 
being held on October 25, 2008.  Three organizations:  the Hellertown Historical Society, the 
Saucon Valley Conservancy and the Lower Saucon Township Historical Society will all be holding 
open houses with activities at the Hellertown Grist Mill, the Heller Homestead and the Lutz-
Franklin Schoolhouse. 
 

RESOLUTION #55-2008 
RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE 1st ANNUAL  

SAUCON VALLEY HISTORY DAY & OPEN HOUSES 
 

WHEREAS, on October 25, 2008, the Saucon Valley’s three historical organizations will be 
holding the 1st Annual History Day; and  
 
WHEREAS, the three organizations: the Hellertown Historical Society, the Saucon Valley 
Conservancy, and the Lower Saucon Township Historical Society, will be holding open houses at 
their respective sites; and     
 
WHEREAS, the Hellertown Historical Society’s Grist Mill on West Walnut Street in Hellertown, 
will be hosting Frank Fabian who will talk about history and give tours of the historic Grist Mill; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Lower Saucon Township Historical Society will offer activities and games for 
children to enjoy at the historic Lutz-Franklin Schoolhouse on Countryside Lane in Lower Saucon 
Township and the Schoolhouse will be open for tours; and 

WHEREAS, The Saucon Valley Conservancy will be hosting a Civil War Living History Day at 
the historic Heller Homestead on Friedensville Road in Lower Saucon Township that will feature 
public demonstrations of 19th century cooking, sewing, medical treatment, military engineering, 
and infantry drills, and a display of the evolution/development of the firearms that were used in 
colonial America. In addition, the Heller House and Widow’s House will be open to visitors; and  
 
WHEREAS, History Day will allow visitors to take a trip back in time and learn about the early 
days of Hellertown and Lower Saucon.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of Lower Saucon Township, Glenn 
Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Council Member; Sandra 
Yerger, Council Member; and Ronald Horiszny, Council Member;  hereby recognizes and salutes 
the 1st Annual History Day & Open Houses. 

 
 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 10 of 19 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of Resolution 55-2008. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Kern 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?    Mrs. deLeon said the activities will take place 
from 10:00 AM to 4:00 PM at all three sites. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

C. RESOLUTION #56-2008 – COMMEMORATING 150TH ANNIVERSARY OF MEADOWS 
ROAD BRIDGE  

 
Mr. Kern said Resolution #56-2008 has been prepared to celebrate County Bridge 15, also known 
as the Meadows Road Bridge for its 150th anniversary. 

 
RESOLUTION #56-2008 

RESOLUTION CELEBRATING 150 YEARS 
OF THE MEADOWS ROAD BRIDGE 

 
WHEREAS, County Bridge 15, also known as the Meadows Road Bridge, is a stone arch masonry 
bridge built in 1858 which is located in Lower Saucon Township; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Meadows Road Bridge, which spans the Saucon Creek, is a 4-span, 102 foot long 
bridge laid up in rubble-coursed fieldstone and matched ring stones; and     
 
WHEREAS, when it was constructed in 1858, the Meadows Road Bridge allowed farmers to 
transport their grain to the nearby Moyer’s Mill and to obtain limestone from the Stevers Mine, 
operated at that time by J.D. Heller; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Meadows Road Bridge is one of only two examples of a 4-span stone arch bridge, 
built between 1826 and 1921, that exist today in Northampton County; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Meadows Road Bridge is currently the oldest bridge in Lower Saucon Township 
and one of the oldest stone bridges in Northampton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lower Saucon Township has committed to efforts to reduce the deterioration of the 
bridge and to ensure its long term viability; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Lower Saucon Township Council, in order to draw public attention to this historic 
structure, has directed that a historic marker be erected on the site of the bridge. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of Lower Saucon Township, Glenn 
Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Council Member; Sandra 
Yerger, Council Member; and Ronald Horiszny, Council Member; hereby recognizes and 
celebrates the 150 years of history and service that the Meadows Road Bridge represents and 
reaffirms our commitment to the long-term preservation of this significant local historic structure.    
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of Resolution 56-2008. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  Mrs. deLeon thanked Stephanie Brown for all 
her help in trying to get attention to this bridge.  Mrs. Yerger said a couple of members of the 
Historic Committee are putting together a display in the Township case with artifacts and 
photographs tracing the history of the bridge.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 11 of 19 

Mrs. Yerger said Leslie passed out suggested wording for the bridge sign.  It says “The Meadow 
Road Bridge built in 1858 is one of only two examples of a four span arch bridge that exist today in 
Northampton County.  Northampton County built the bridge to accommodate the farmers 
transporting their grain to the Moyer grist mill”.  Mrs. deLeon said it should read “exists today”.  
Mr. Horiszny said if it’s 1858, doesn’t that pin it down.  Mr. Cahalan said we could put at the 
bottom “adopted by the Township” the day you adopted the marker.  Mrs. Yerger said that would 
be good.  Mr. Horiszny said shouldn’t Grist Mill be capitalized?  Mrs. Yerger said she ran it by an 
editor and because it’s not an existing grist mill, the feeling was it was the Moyer’s grist mill, but it 
was not today known officially as the Moyer grist mill.  Mr. Horiszny said you could take “their” 
grain out, so get rid of “their”.  Mr. Kern said we’ll capitalize “Grist Mill.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval to move ahead with the sign, with changes. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  Ms. Stephanie Brown, resident, said this sign 
you are putting up, since the bridge has two sides, is it only going on one side?  Mr. Cahalan 
said to be determined.  We wanted to try to get the sign done and we are trying for October 25 
for a small ceremony.  It depends on the sign people.  If we don’t have a sign, we’ll use a mock 
up.  We could do it at 9:30 AM.     

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

D. DISCUSSION REGARDING HELLER HOMESTEAD MAINTENANCE GARAGE  
 

Mr. Kern said at the October 1, 2008 Council meeting, Council directed the Manager to come back 
with a plan for the disposal of the contents in the garage and the demolition of the building.    

 
 Mr. Cahalan said we got two things done on this.  We provided you a copy with the Engineer’s 

report that was done in 2005, which is the basis for the desire to demolish and eliminate the garage.  
It’s from Ron Madison from HEA.  He also asked Public Works to go out and prepare an inventory 
of the contents in the garage and we’ve provided that to you.  They just broke it down into 
Township items and Conservancy items.  Mr. Cahalan spoke to Public Works about the demolition 
and it could be done using existing township equipment.  The roof and the wooden debris would 
have to go to the landfill and there would be a cost for that.  The cinder block could go to crushed 
crete and he estimated that they would need a few topsoil and grass seed and the total cost of all of 
that would be estimated at about $1,500, and we would not have to rent any equipment.  He’s 
assuming and will check it further that there are no hazardous material in the garage.  We would 
look into any permits that are needed and he will be speaking to the Solicitor about the maintenance 
garage in the lease with the Saucon Valley Conservancy.  Mrs. deLeon said the last thing you said 
about the Solicitor and the lease?  Mr. Cahalan said we have a lease with the Conservancy for the 
Heller Homestead and it includes all of the buildings and he wants to talk to the Solicitor about the 
impact of this proposed demolition on that lease document. 

 
 Mrs. deLeon said she knew that at the time the Conservancy signed the lease, it was in 1993, and 

the Township had stored Saucon Fest items.  The wooden changing curtains could be panels for the 
gift shop.  She’s not sure if those might be considered curtains, but she’d have to see them.  The 
other stuff, we’ve had yard sales and whenever someone donating things, it went in there.  The 
refrigerator was in the kitchen prior to the 50’s, and there was a stove.  There are the original 
shutters to the house. There’s also probably the original doors to the house before the new doors 
were put on with 19th century hardware in there.  There are things that are valuable to the SV 
Conservancy.  Some people donated things to us over the years, like the wagon, and there is also 
garden tools and they put them in the Widow’s House to work in the garden.  The Conservancy has 
to work with the Township and make sure these artifacts are protected.  Mr. Kern said there’s 
probably not that many artifacts.  The Conservancy needs to identify those items.  Mrs. deLeon said 
in discussion with some of our Board Members, if you refer back to Wise Preservation’s survey 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 12 of 19 

form, they do talk about the ruins of a saw mill that the garage was built around or on.  It says the 
saw mill was located east of the Widow’s House, on the west side of a historic railroad bed, a one 
story garage was constructed on the north portion of the foundation ruin.  We need to look into 
those ruins and not disturb them when or if this happens.  If you look at the foundation facing the 
creek, you can see that’s the old mill.  She would think the township would not want to demolish 
that.  Mrs. Yerger said the first step would be to have the SV Conservancy look at the list and see 
what they want to weed out.  Mr. Cahalan said if we move through this, and it will take several 
months, as we get closer to a decision, he’d recommend we bring someone in like David Kimmerle 
to go out and identify anything that would be of historic significance.  Mrs. deLeon said wouldn’t it 
be more cost effective to use Wise Preservation?  Mrs. Yerger said Dave is now with Preservation 
PA and he might do it for nothing.  Mr. Cahalan said he would have to see if we’d have to do a 
remediation plan to submit to PHMC.  Mrs. deLeon said they refer to the garage as 
noncontributing, but the mill ruins.  Mr. Maxfield said he doesn’t see it as an analysis of the 
property to go in the garage and see what’s in it.   If we’re going to do something like that, he’d go 
with Sandy’s suggestion and cost us a lot less money.  Mr. Cahalan said something would be 
needed as he’d have to go to the state and run it by them.  Mrs. Yerger said the remediation would 
be if it’s absolutely necessary, but in the report itself, they say it’s not a contributing factor.  
Demolishing is not the issue, she doesn’t know what exists in the ruins.  Mr. Cahalan said that’s 
what they have to be careful about.  Mr. Kern said he’d like to see the building removed as it would 
improve the site.  The motion is to get the ball rolling.  Mrs. Yerger said Jack will contact PHMC 
and she’ll make a phone call to Dave to see what happens when you have ruins.  Mrs. deLeon said 
the wall next to the garage, she’d like to see that preserved. Mr. Maxfield said yes, that is obviously 
old and kind of attractive.  Mrs. deLeon said it would like nice as a bank for the parking lot.  That 
wall that sticks out by the porta pot, that’s where the saw mill was.  Mr. Maxfield said he’s 
guessing it’s a poured concrete floor and got rid of the old structure underneath the garage.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Kern amended his motion and moved for approval for demolition of the garage and to 

have special care taken and consideration taken for the possible ruins that are underneath it and 
around it, and have Jack Cahalan contact PHMC and report every meeting back to Council 
with updates.  Also, this should be based on cooperation with the Conservancy and the 
Manager, and based on timelines, have it done before July 1, 2009. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield amended his second 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  Mrs. Segaline said she’s not familiar with the 
recommendation with HEA.  Mrs. Yerger said it was that the building be removed because it 
was an obstruction in the flood plain.  Since we don’t allow other township residents to 
construct houses in a flood plain, it’s a very bad example to have there.  Mrs. Yerger said it’s 
not a matter of being grandfathered in?  Mrs. Yerger said it was recommended by HEA to have 
it removed as it’s in the flood plain.  Mrs. Yerger said we are getting a new building for the 
purpose of storage?  Mrs. Yerger said that’s what you need to do is determine what needs to be 
kept.  Majority of it is not historic in nature.  Mr. Kern said it shouldn’t be there anyway as it’s 
right by the creek.  Mrs. Segaline said she’s seen the bricks are misaligned.  Mr. Cahalan said 
the whole building is settling and cracking.  The Engineer recommended in 2005 because of 
those issues that no further investment be put into improvements in the structure.   Mrs. deLeon 
said back in 1988, when Hovanian was putting in Society Hill, they offered the 14 acre Heller 
Park.  She was brand new on Council.  Some of the land they were giving the Township was 
floodplain.  We ended up with Wassergass Park.  The land from Wassergass plus the buildable 
land by the creek, that’s how the township acquired the Heller Homestead and it was put in two 
different parcels and the garage was in the floodplain.  They wanted to put the gift shop in the 
garage and that’s when the study was done by the Engineer.  Mrs. Segaline said there’s a wheel 
barrow in the basement, she can’t imagine someone bringing a wheel barrow up the steps, and 
can’t we build a structure to store these items?  Mrs. Yerger said she would not do anything 
until you get recommendations back from Wise and PHMC.  Mrs. deLeon said the only place 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 13 of 19 

we could do anything is where the chicken coop is and we may be able to recreate something 
like that and have a storage shed.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

E. APPROVAL OF GEOSERVICES, LTD. PROPOSAL FOR SITE CHARACTERIZATION 
AND REPORTING AT PUBLIC WORKS GARAGE  

 
Mr. Kern said with the assistance of Environmental Solicitor, Charles Elliott, the Township issued 
an RFP seeking proposals from contractors to perform soil testing and remediation work in order to 
demonstrate to PADEP that the site requires no further action and to obtain the Department’s 
approval of the required reporting. Three (3) proposals were received and reviewed by the Manager 
and Solicitor Elliott and we are recommending Township approval for the proposal submitted by 
GeoServices, Ltd. of Camp Hill, PA at a total cost of $7,500.00. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said this would bring us closure to an issue.  We had a small fuel spill at the gas 
pumps back in 2007.  We went through the normal processing with DEP.  We called in the 
contractor, ARM. They collected samples, sent it to DEP and we got approval of the remediation of 
that and we were prepared to move on, but DEP came back to us sometime later and rescinded the 
approval because they had an issue with the laboratory several years back with the results that they 
had been producing and disqualified them from submitting any data to them for any of these 
remediation plans.  That put us back to square one and in order to make sure that we took care of 
this all at one time, we called in Charles Elliott, the Township Environmental Solicitor, and we 
asked for his advice on how we can put out an RFP for firms to come in and do this type of work.  
We got proposals from three firms.  Mr. Elliott looked at them and he felt that GeoServices would 
do the best work to remediate this and get approval from PA DEP.  On our capital program, we can 
replace the pumps with a more modern system which is more secure and a little more 
environmentally safe.  This has been holding it up for two years and we want to move ahead and 
think we can do that with GeoServices proposal.  Mr. Cahalan said we also have insurance that 
covers these spills. 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of GeoServices in the amount of $7,500. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

F. REVIEW OF CONSULTANT COMMENTS ON CITY OF BETHLEHEM DRAFT 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  
 

 Mrs. deLeon said a copy of the City of Bethlehem’s draft Comprehensive Plan was forwarded to 
the Township for the 45-day review period pursuant to the MPC. The Township Planner and 
Engineer have reviewed the draft Plan and will discuss their comments with Council.  

 
 Ms. Ogur said after reviewing the document, they found the plan is lacking in any sort of regional 

cooperation.  With the timing of their plan being recently up for adoption and us in the process of 
adopting a regional comprehensive plan, we would suggest that the City of Bethlehem plan 
incorporate an item recommending collaboration with neighboring communities.  We made some 
specific recommendations.  The collaboration of the City of Bethlehem EAC and the Lower Saucon 
Township EAC regarding studies for flooding and buffering of the Saucon Creek; combining 
efforts of the Park and Recreation boards for improvements to Saucon Park; and encouraging 
partnership between the municipalities and the development of connector trails and greenways.  All 
three of those items were in the Action Plan program. In addition, the MPC requires that 
comprehensive plans include a statement indicating the existing and proposed development of the 
municipality being consistent with objectives and plans of the County Comprehensive Plan and it 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 14 of 19 

does not appear that the Bethlehem Plan does makes any reference to the LV 230 Comprehensive 
Plan as adopted in 2004, and on a minor note, the map on page 317 is listed in the table of contents 
as a future land use map for the southern section, but is in fact the generalized existing land use.  
It’s kind of a duplicate map. 

 
 Mr. Kocher said they looked at it for utility and traffic information and their comments are for your 

information.  The first is it does look at the development of BethWorks and Sands Bethlehem and 
the expected traffic increased they expect to see on 412 which is about 10,300 more PM peak hour 
trips.  Mrs. deLeon said when it was on the website, they presented a scenario and HEA looked at 
it.  The only reason she’s bringing this up, we need to get a handle on this traffic.  Mr. Kocher said 
he thinks they use that piece of information to go in their three improvements that they would like 
to see on 412.  The first is minor intersection widening and signal interconnection along the Third 
Street corridor for Minsi Trail Bridge and Route 378.  They say contracts were led in 2008.  The 
second is New Street ramp at the western end of the corridor to tie Brodhead into Hill to Hill.  They 
are really getting farther from LST; and then widening 412 from I78 to the Minsi Trail Bridge 
resulting in a new cross section of two thru lanes in both directions and a left turn lane.  Contracts 
will be in 2010.  The second thing is they show some pathways which work down to LST.  The 
third is the plan strongly supports the development of passenger rail service back to Philadelphia.   

 
 Mr. Maxfield said the Industrial area that is being developed on the old Coke Works property, he’d 

recommend that they would deal with the site with some sort of sensitivity, and take it along the 
lines of when we’re looking for consistent uses across boundary lines.  A good portion of it borders 
our rural area on the eastern part of the township and they need to deal with lighting, traffic and 
those kinds of things.  Already you can see the glow on the intermodal.  They need to consider that.  
Mrs. Yerger said one thing that should be added is they need to have respect for the actual 
greenways that were identified by LVPC.  That is our comment and recommendation.  Mrs. deLeon 
said shouldn’t their plan be consistent with the County?  Mr. Maxfield said it should be generally 
consistent.  Mr. Kocher said that’s probably not tested unless someone sues them.  Mrs. Yerger 
asked Ms. Ogur to add those comments.  Look at the LVPC greenway maps, it runs right through 
it.  Mr. Maxfield said the lighting they put in already poses some problems to some LST residents 
already.   

 
 Carolyn Yagle said building on Tom’s comment and how you as a community have addressed the 

rural nature is one of the items in the Action Plan discussion about the dark skies imitative which 
flows right into that concept.  If you are coupling that initiative and working with your neighbors, 
there is something in which you can further build that cooperation, it is the concept you have all 
established that this is a significant area of important that you maintain that rural nature and it’s 
being incorporated into your draft documents and in your comprehensive plan.  It could be a reason 
why you are mentioning it as an item.  Mr. Maxfield said he likes the dark skies initiatives.  There’s 
already a set of recommendations out there.   

 
 Mrs. deLeon said she doesn’t want to lose focus with the traffic and the casinos.  We need to do 

something with that, as a separate issue.  Mr. Cahalan said whenever we talk about impacts, the 
traffic comes up.  Somebody needs to organize all this stuff.  Mr. Kocher said the township’s 
comment to the city can be that you would really like to be involved in the process of any 
improvements planned on the 412 corridor to see how they impact LST.  When they are actually 
planning those improvements, then we can look at numbers and see if they make sense.  Mr. Kern 
said that Mr. Cahalan brought to their attention several months ago that someone from Bethlehem 
Council wanted to bring traffic through roads we don’t want them to come through.  We want to 
discourage that.  Mr. Kocher said he’s not sure that’s specifically spelled out. 

 
 Mr. Mark Wirth, resident, said Brien Kocher mentioned something under the EPD Municipal Plan 

that the City of Bethlehem and local municipalities had mentioned about possibly using an alternate 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 15 of 19 

way through the back into Hellertown for traffic off of I78.  Is that any possibility from what he 
hears who works from the State, and going through the back of their farm which is owned by Mr. 
Warner.  Mr. Kocher said they don’t really go into any detail with the extent of improvements or 
configurations.  They just lay out the broad concepts.  Mrs. deLeon said when he’s taking about 
I78, he’s talking about I78 in Hellertown.  Mr. Horiszny said will we see the letter?  Mr. Cahalan 
said we have to get it out before the next meeting.  Mrs. Yerger said can we bring it back on 
October 22?  Mr. Cahalan said yes we can take a look at it then. 

 
 Mrs. Margie Segaline said does their comprehensive plan include any other types of impacts other 

than traffic and things like that?  Mr. Kocher said he only looked at the traffic impacts, what other 
impacts are you talking about?  Mrs. Segaline said impacts on health and human services, impacts 
on the school system, there’s a whole list.  Mr. Cahalan said the comp plan didn’t focus on the 
casino impacts. That was done previously when the City applied for the gaming license.  They had 
to put together certain reports.  Those are available on the PA Gaming Control Board.  The other 
impacts were issues we discussed, the increase in police activity, emergency services, impact traffic 
would have on our roads.  We have figures on that, and something we are going to have to monitor. 
The City’s data was shared with the State when they went through the licensing.  A copy of the 
Bethlehem’s report is available on the City of Bethlehem website.  

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to authorize the letter. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

G. POLK VALLEY PARK TRAIL – PAVING MATERIAL BID AWARD  
 

 Mr. Kern said a bid opening for pervious paving material for the trail at Polk Valley Park was held 
on October 14, 2008 and staff will review the bid results with Council. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said this was for the pervious concrete material for the trails at Polk Valley  park. We 
had discussions previously at meeting about this material, it’s less expensive than the asphalt.  We 
advertised four bids and received three responses.  We opened those bids yesterday at the 
Township.  We had three results with Berks Products Corporation as the low bidder at $56,100 for 
the material needed at Polk Valley Park.  Mrs. deLeon said what does FOB mean?  Mr. Kocher said 
freight on board and we have to go and get it and it was specifically bid to be delivered.  It doesn’t 
fit in with Roger’s work plan.  The Public Works crew is going to be installing the material once 
the concrete gets there and he needs the entire crew there.  That’s why it was bid specifically 
delivered. 

 
Mr. James Casilio said he prepared the bid for their company and there was a little bit of confusion.  
They gave you numbers as specially listed on your form.  Unfortunately the form is for bituminous 
product and there was a little confusion.  Delivering the product to the work site in trucks is not the 
way to go.  They bid the product right on the form just as the lines shown there.  Their 
recommendation is to deliver it by dump trucks and that’s how he interpreted an FOB price.  As a 
township, you would go and get your own material and run it through your paver.  We would have 
the ability to quote delivered by dump truck.  He applauds the township for using this product as 
it’s an environmentally green product.  We tried to make it a very attractive FOB price as we’re 
close to you.  Attorney Shafkowitz said looking at the bid documents now, it seems pretty clear that 
they were asking for a delivered condition of the material.  The bid asks for it to be done a 
particular way.  We have to go with the bid that is responsive to the bid.  Mr. Kocher said the forms 
are PennDOT standard forms.  We used the forms for all kinds of things.  It was specifically bid 
delivered.  He didn’t get any calls from any of the bidders. 

 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 16 of 19 

Mr. Kern said he’s confused about how it’s not going to work for Roger.  Mr. Kocher said if we 
have to go and get the material at the plant.  If we had bid this FOB, and it specified pick up at the 
plant, then the only one who gave us a price like that was Mr. Casilio.  He’s saying if you had bid it 
that way, that’s what your cost would be.  Roger needs the crew at the park, and not going to pick 
up the material.  Mr. Casilio said it asks for both prices on your form, he didn’t know which price 
to bid.  Mr. Kocher said this refers to the specific instructions at the top where it says delivered to.  
Mrs. Yerger said she’s seeing an on site price, and your bid is $56,115, which comes down to $87 
per cubic yard.  Everyone else that bid on site, we have low bid that was $80 per cubic yard or 
$51,600.  The FOB price is irrelevant at this time.  Mr. Casilio said he strongly recommends not 
coming in a mixer truck.  Mr. Kocher said there are disadvantages to a mixer truck.  Roger has to 
be comfortable with it being delivered with dump trucks.   The bottom line is we bid it delivered it 
to Polk Valley Park.  Attorney Shafkowitz said the bid specified “delivered” on site.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to award the contract to Berks Products Corporation for $51,600 for the 

pervious concrete. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 

 
H. AUTHORIZE ADVERTISEMENT OF ORDINANCE TO AMEND VEHICLE CODE – 

CHAPTER 170  
 

Mr. Kern said as result of new roads and signage being added in the Township, Council should 
direct the staff to prepare any revisions and amendments to the Vehicle Code and prepare an 
Ordinance Amendment.  Council should also authorize the staff to advertise the Ordinance for a 
public hearing for adoption. 

 
Mr. Cahalan said this is to catch up on new roads that have been dedicated to the Township.  We 
have a lot of cul-de-sacs that we want added and this will direct us to put this in an advertised 
ordinance. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to authorize advertisement of ordinance to amend vehicle code – chapter 

170. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger  

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 

 
I. PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT TO HELLER HOMESTEAD PARK NATURE LOOP 

TRAIL 
 

 Mr. Kern said in order to improve the scenic quality of the refurbished Nature Loop Trail at Heller 
Homestead Park, we have asked Boucher & James to put together drawings showing the placement 
of benches along the Nature Loop Trail that will afford visitors a scenic overlook of the Saucon 
Creek.  If Council approves these features, this work can be done in-house by the Public Works 
Department. 

 
 Mr. Cahalan said when we were out there working on the improvements with the Girl Scouts we 

thought that would be a great idea to put benches there for people who would use the trail to sit 
there and enjoy the view.  We asked Boucher and James to put something together and Stacy and 
Valerie worked on this.  We can have Public Works put the benches in.  Mrs. deLeon said it’s a 
great addition.  There’s a tendency for some of the tables and chairs to find a way into the creek.  
Mr. Cahalan said they will make sure they are secured.  Mr. Horiszny said do we have an estimate?  
Mr. Cahalan said a couple of hundred dollars, he can come back to you with a figure and we can 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 17 of 19 

take care of that in the Public Works budget. Mr. Maxfield noticed where the field that is cut, 
there’s an old wood and metal picnic table, and sitting back a few feet off the track rusted to pieces.  
Mr. Cahalan said they will look into it.    

  
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the benches along the Nature Loop Trail at Heller 

Homestead. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 

 
VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 1, 2008 COUNCIL MINUTES 
 
Mr. Kern said the minutes of October 1, 2008 are ready for Council’s review and approval. 
 

MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for approval of the October 1, 2008 Council minutes. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mr. Horiszny – No) 

 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Ø Mark Wirth said he’s concerned on something he found on Old Philadelphia Pike behind Dr. 
Feelgoodes. In the second pile that has been recently dumped there, he found some car batteries 
buried in the pile which had come out of the development as they have been buried in clay.  They 
were dumped there and are sticking out of the pile.  Mr. Cahalan said they will look into it. 

 
VIII. COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 
 

Ø Mr. Cahalan said at last Council meeting, the Tarantino application, they requested the one 
EDU and Council had given them approval.  He did get the form requesting the one EDU 
from the Lower Saucon Authority and it was submitted.  Mrs. deLeon said is this going to 
be brought back as an agenda item?  Mr. Cahalan said we approved the one EDU subject to 
them submitting the form and they submitted the form.   

Ø He did receive a request from the LST Historical Society that someone had requested to 
use the Schoolhouse for a wedding ceremony. Sue Horiszny, the President asked if the 
Township set any rules. They would appreciate the Township’s advise on how to handle 
these requests.  Mrs. deLeon said the lease says we can’t lease this out to someone else.  
The issue has come up with them.  Attorney Shafkowitz said he’s going to speculate and 
that some township’s that have parks, have a special uses permit which is just tell us when 
you are going to be there, how many people are going to be there, do you have insurance.  
You don’t rent it out or take any dollars for it.  Mrs. deLeon said it says you can’t sublet it.  
Attorney Shafkowitz said they can look at the lease.  Mr. Cahalan said the individual says 
they will be marrying in the New Year.  Mr. Maxfield said ask if it’s both the wedding and 
reception.  Mr. Cahalan said they will bring this back and have the Solicitor look at it.   

Ø Hellertown Halloween Parade is Sunday, October 19, 2008 at 2:00 PM.  We will have 
vehicles for Council members and Council President and the Mayor.   

 
 
 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 18 of 19 

B. COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL 
 

Mr. Maxfield 
Ø He wanted to congratulate the Lutz-Franklin Schoolhouse on getting on the Historic 

Register.  Congratulations to them. 
Ø He heard from Lehigh Valley Conservation and they are involved in the Saucon Creek 

Watershed assessment and all contiguous wetland to the Saucon Creek are classified EV 
wetlands.  He doesn’t know what that means and he wanted the Staff to look into that.  
They may want some additional protection.  He wants to find out what we need to do.   

 
Mrs. Yerger 
Ø She asked if we need a formal motion to ask Staff to update our open space plan to comply 

with the 2005 LVPC NRI Sites?  Mr. Maxfield said why not, it can’t hurt. 
 

MOTION BY:  Mrs. Yerger moved for approval to have Staff update our Open Space Plan to comply with the 
2005 LVPC NRI sites. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0  
 
Mr. Horiszny 
Ø He said congratulations to the success at the Schoolhouse. 
Ø At the schoolhouse tomorrow, the first class of the fall session will meet from Moravian 

Academy.  They are going to have half of the classes go to the Grist Mill and the other half 
to the Schoolhouse and they will then switch places. 

 
Mr. Kern 
Ø None 

 
Mrs. deLeon 
Ø She’s looking forward to History Day.  She wanted to know if the Township could make 

copies and have a handout that they could have at each of the sites.  Each of the three 
places can have a circular type thing.  Mr. Kern said saying what event is at what site?  
Mrs. deLeon said yes.   

Ø She said cable service.  A resident contacted her regarding the outdated services in the 
Wassergass area.  Linc Treadwell was asked to update the cable contracts and that hasn’t 
happened.  She’d like to see the Township contacting both cable companies and asked 
them if they are providing the most updated services to all areas of the township or are they 
selectively providing DSL to one and not the other.  Mrs. Yerger said they’ve been 
extending the services.  Mrs. deLeon said whenever the resident would call SECTV, they’d 
give them a date, and then that date passes.  We just need to write to them.  This is a 
service they need to provide us.  Ms. Huhn said Roger went through that whole process and 
submitted a petition.  He thought he had it and he didn’t.  They even billed him for it.  Mrs. 
deLeon said as a township we can negotiate deals as a township.  We are losing out on 
services.  We have a right to inquire in with the cable companies and make sure the 
residents are getting the most up to date services.  This resident has been told too many 
times they are getting it and they don’t.  Mr. Allan Johnson said Service Electric is the only 
ones that are offering cable service to the eastern part of the township.  Everybody can get 
television service.  With the old cable in place with the TV services, you can get one way 
internet service. They have been improving their lines to allow two way high speed internet 
where you can get high speed downloads and when you send it back, high speed  uploads 
which is what everyone wants.  He has it on Martins Lane.  He thought they were doing it 
on Lower Saucon Road from the intersection of Wassergass Road and southward.  They 



General Business Meeting 
October 15, 2008 
 

Page 19 of 19 

were going up Banko Lane.  That’s what he knows.  His feed came in from Polk Valley 
Road.  Mr.  Kern would like a map from Verizon and a map from RCN and Service 
Electric showing existing high speed service and planned high speed service with dates. 
Mr. Horiszny said and why don’t the fire companies get free services.  Mr. Cahalan will 
look into this. 

 
D. SOLICITOR 

Ø None 
 
C. ENGINEER 

Ø None 
 

D. PLANNING 
Ø Ms. Ogur said Judy Stern Goldstein asked her to talk about the Steel City Park.  Mr. 

Cahalan said he didn’t circulate any of that yet.  Ms. Ogur said they were asked to come up 
with a conceptual sketch redesign for improvments to Steel City Park.  They held a public 
visioning meeting in August during one of the Park and Rec meeting and it was very 
successful.  Valerie in their office developed three different conceptual sketch plans.  All 
three offer parking, improvements to the softball field, walking paths, volley ball court, and 
porta johns, sanitizers. There are some differences between the three sketch plans.  The 
next step would be to have another Park and Rec and public meeting advertising these 
sketch plans.  Mr. Cahalan said this will be on the agenda at the next Parks and Rec 
meeting. 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOTION BY:  Mr. Maxfield moved for adjournment.  The time was 10:07 PM. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0  
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
___________________________________   __________________________________ 
Mr. Jack Cahalan      Glenn Kern     
Township Manager      President of Council 
 
 


